AGENDA
REGULAR DRAINAGE MEETING
Wednesday, September 1, 2021 9:30 AM
Large Conference Room
This meeting will be held electronically and in-person.
To access the meeting call: 1-(312)-626-6799, when prompted enter meeting

ID code: 820 7567 2007

You can also access the meeting online at:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82075672007

1. Open Meeting
2. Approve Agenda
3. Approve Minutes

Documents:

DD 48 LANDONWER MTG MINUTES - 06_23_21.PDF
8_18_2021 - DRAINAGE MINUTES.PDF

4. DD 56 WO 3 - Discuss W Possible Action - ROW Easements
5. DD 63 WO 2020-12 - Discuss W Possible Action - Utility Permit Observation Report

Documents:
2020-12 OBSERVATION SUMMARY - HEART OF IOWA - 08_27_2021.PDF

6. Discuss W Possible Action - New Work Order Requests

Documents:

DD 52 WO 316.PDF

DD 52 WO 316 PHOTO 1.PDF
DD 52 WO 316 PHOTO 2.PDF
DD 52 WO 316 PHOTO 3.PDF

7. Discuss W Possible Action - Honey Creek Land Improvement Progress Report
8. Other Business

9. Adjourn Meeting


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82075672007
https://www.hardincountyia.gov/d8285e0f-3db2-4802-b4d3-33e22dae53c3

8/31/2021 6/23/2021 - Minutes

DRAINAGE DISTRICT 48 LANDOWNERS MEETING
Wednesday, June 23, 2021 1:00 pm

This meeting was held electronically and in-person.

6/23/2021 - Minutes

1. Open Meeting

Hardin County Drainage Chairperson BJ Hoffman opened the meeting. Also present were Trustee Renee
McClellan; Trustee Lance Granzow; Lee Gallentine of Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (CGA); Landowners Kevin
Johnson; Marc Broer; Liz Gilbert; Roger Wood; Duane Swart; Mike Broer; Robert Wayne; Mike Reed; Keith Helvig;
Richard Gehrke; Alvin Clark; Phillip Broer; Tim Broer; Jody Anderson; Michael Pearce, Network Specialist; and
Denise Smith, Drainage Clerk.

2. Approve Agenda

Motion by McClellan to approve the agenda. Second by Granzow. All ayes. Motion carried.

3. Introductions/Attendance

Introductions were made and attendance verified.

4. DD 48 WO 274 - Discuss W Possible Action - Investigation Summaries / Preliminary Estimate

Hoffman introduced Lee Gallentine of Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (CGA) and asked Gallentine to walk us
through the Investigation Summaries and then we will have ample time for questions, comments and discussions.
Hoffman asked that everyone go allow Gallentine to go through his information and then Gallentine, Smith and the
Trustees can answer your questions as best as we can. Hoffman stated after the meeting Smith is returning to her
office so if there is anything you need information on or copies of, anything like that, please know she will be
available in the Auditor's Office following the meeting. Hoffman appreciates everyone coming down and spending
some time with us this afternoon, and will try to get you out of here in a timely manner to go home and reset your
rain gauges.

Gallentine introduced himself, and will try to speak loudly as acoustics are not the best in this room, if you can't
hear, please let him know. On Drainage District 48, there was a small work order turned in for some work on the
open ditch of DD 48, when we went out to look at that, we also noticed there was some other issues in the near
vicinity that didn't look too good on DD 48, there was some sloughing going on and other things like that, so we
brought that back to the district Trustees, the District Trustees said why don't you go out and see ho widespread
these issues are on the Main open ditch of DD 48. Gallentine stated so we did, we went out and did a visual
observation of the open ditch, also did some survey shots along there to determine where it is at grade wise, level
wise and that type of thing, so we boiled that down into a little bit of a summary which this map is part of, so
Gallentine is going to go through what we found, Gallentine stated this open ditch is a little bit different than a lot of
them, a lot of them we see haven't been cleaned out for a long time and they are silting in, they have got silt from
one end to the other, this thing has kind of got a bunch of different things going on with it, it isn't just one thing by
itself.

Gallentine stated what we found is there is about 6,000' that has some silt in, and that silt varies anywhere from
1/4 of a foot, and that level is that significant in Gallentine's mind, up to about 1-1/4 feet, that is starting to get a
little bit more significant. A lot of it depends on whether or not there is a tile outlet where there is 1-1/4', and
whether it comes in where that 1-1/4' is, if there is a tile outlet there then it is very significant, if the tile outlet is 2'
higher than that, then it is not such a big deal, but that is the area that is in blue on this map. Gallentine stated we
have a bigger area of 4,500' there and then up a bit, from the current upstream end to the far north there is about
another 1,500', so your siltation isn't just occurring in one location, it is occurring in two different spots, so we have
siltation that is occurring there. We have about 15,000' and actually it is a little bit longer than that, of main open
ditch that has actually eroded to the point that it is below the design grade, so at one time, they dug it out to this
elevation and instead of silting in, this thing has decided it is going to erode, so it is actually deeper than the
original flow was, and that is yellow highlighted on the map, that is a decent portion of it, the majority of this thing is
cutting itself deeper, Gallentine stated in and of itself that is good because you don't have to clean out silt, you
don't have to worry about that issue, the problem gets to be is when it cuts itself, it doesn't cut itself deeper on an
even flow line, it some up and down, up and down, up and down, so you are deeper than what it was originally

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/AgendaCenter/GenerateMinutesFile?id=1441&agendalD=1909 1M1



8/31/2021 6/23/2021 - Minutes

built at, than it was originally designed for but you are not as flat and smooth as what it was designed for, so that in
and of itself does change the drainage flow pattern and it changes the drainage efficiency, so it doesn't drain as
efficiently. If it is flat it is going to drain a lot smoother than if you have got these up and down ripples, so that is the
yellow highlighted portion of the map.

Gallentine stated along with that, there is about 8,800', where the ditch bottom itself is narrower than it was
designed, which it sounds reasonable if this thing is going down and you have a bottom here, as it goes down it is
going to make more of a vee, so there is about 8,800', which is the red line on the map towards the upper end.
Gallentine stated typically if you are going deeper, that is a better thing for tile outlets because you have more
room until they actually get submerged, but as that channel gets narrower down to a point, it also does this
snaking within the drainage ditch, anytime you have that, it also slows down drainage efficiency and drainage
capacity, whereas a straight flow line is going to flow better, also once you get that first drop of water or first 6" of
water, let's say, if there is a vee bottom, there isn't near as much water as it takes to fill up those 6", if you have a 4'
wide bottom, it takes a lot more water to fill up those 6", so you have differences in capacity because of that also,
those were two of the main things that were happening with the channel itself. Gallentine stated we also noticed
that the outlet itself and the main tile at the very upper end, it would be up on the right of the map, there is erosion
that is occurring around that, the tile itself is flowing just fine, in long term that erosion could lead to the tile
washing out, so that would be more of a preventative thing, to fix that.

Gallentine stated there is about 10' spots where we noticed there is existing tile outlets, that aren't in good shape
and are starting to be in disrepair, what that does is once those tile outlets come through the bank and start
eroding or the CMP, the metal pipe, comes off the end, it erodes back into the bank and you get sloughing and
more siltation can occur. Gallentine stated there is about 20 spots where there is surface drains, and what surface
drains are is metal pipes that carry the surface water from the back side of the spoil banks back down into the
open ditch, so the tile outlet is for the tile that is underground, this carries surface water. There is about 20 spots
that those are in disrepair also, again that just adds to the siltation and the soil that goes in the open ditch.
Gallentine stated there are about 15 spots where the bank itself has sloughed off, which really considering how
much of this open ditch has eroded below grade that isn't bad, once you start going down below grade, your banks
keep getting steeper and steeper and the banks want to slough off because there isn't much support for them
anymore so that is what is causing that.

Gallentine stated there is about 5 spot +/- where there is some trees are growing and those can promote beaver
growth, or beaver activity, and if you get that going on that really increases siltation because back behind that
beaver dam, that water slows down if it has got any dirt, it is going to dump that dirt and it backs water up, so we
want to avoid those. Gallentine stated there are two spots where there is either quite a few rocks down in the flow
line, we are not quite sure how they got in there, or there is a former crossing like a low water crossing, that is
down in the flow line of the open ditch. Those in general kind of act like a beaver dam, not to the same extent
because they are not as high, but they act like a beaver dam and they can cause siltation upstream as well.

Gallentine stated none of these things individually by themselves, would be maybe anything for concern, when you
combine them all together, it is our duty to make sure all of the landowners are aware, so they know what is going
on, if  am a landowner out there and one of my tile outlets isn't working and | call up Gehrke, and Gehrke comes
out and fixes it, he goes well that is because you have silt in the open ditch, if we knew about that and didn't tell
you folks, you wouldn't be too happy about that, that is why we are here today. Gallentine stated we generate a
brief summary, and the next step if this were to move forward would be an Engineer's Report would be generated,
then there wold be a Public Hearing and they would go through all of this again with more detail and we talk about
it more. Gallentine stated the District Trustees haven't decided to go that route, they want to get your opinion about
this, Gallentine believes, before they go forward and spend the money on an Engineer's Report, so this is a
preliminary step if it goes forward or not.

Gallentine stated all together we are estimating, Gallentine is not the guy in the backhoe, this is based off of
previous bid lettings that were had, if you fix all those issues, we are thinking the construction an engineering total
together is going to be about $1,000,000. It is a very, very big end rough number, but it is something to chew on
and Smith ran some sheets with those numbers.

5. Comments/Discussion

Gallentine asked if folks have questions on what we found or why we think something is at issue or at play. It
was asked how we determine what each person pays, people have been adding tile lines to this drainage
ditch for years, and the closer you live to the thing the more you get charged, how recently has it been
adjusted to equity on who is hooked up to what. Gallentine stated that was a great question, he will try to

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/AgendaCenter/GenerateMinutesFile?id=1441&agendalD=1909 2/1



8/31/2021 6/23/2021 - Minutes

answer all the questions, and if he misses any just remind him. Gallentine stated so how you determine it
gets paid, when this district was established originally, they had a a Classification Commission, that consisted
of an Engineer, two landowners within the County that weren't interested in the district, they didn't own
ground there, they didn't rent ground there, they didn't do anything, they went out and they determined for
each forty acre parcel or smaller, how much benefit they felt that each parcel got from the Drainage District
improvement, that was the percent benefitted. The most benefitted parcel would be considered 100% benefit
and everybody would be compared to that and that schedule generated a report and there was a hearing on
it back in the day and it was approved by Supervisors at the time, if they didn't like it they could object, if they
still didn't like it, they could take it to a district court and do a lawsuit over it, whenever that was done last, that
schedule is still in effect. It was asked by a landowner when that schedule was done last. Smith stated she
thought we were on the original classification, Smith stated she thought it was on the original classification
when the district was established which would have been sometime from about 1910 - 1920, so it has not
been reclassified since 1910-1920. Gallentine stated he it has not been reclassified since 1910-1920,
probably 1910, whenever this district was established, Gallentine can tell you that if that apportionment of
benefits, that classification is not equitable, the Trustees can order a reclassification. Hoffman stated by the
landowners request. Gallentine stated you can do it on your own, Hoffman stated typically we will do it after a
landowner request, and hope that landowners would come in and say something has changed, Hoffman is
so glad you used the word equitable and equity because fairness is just not the proper word to use, but if
there is something that gives you reason to believe that there is not equity there, then you can request that
the Trustees do a reclassification. Gallentine stated when you reclassify, it is the same process, you have two
landowners who are disinterested, you have got an engineer, Gallentine is not sure how they did it 100 years
ago, he is sure a lot of it was done by horse and buggy and that type of thing, technology has changed a lot,
we get the USDA soil maps, so based off the soil type, we typically classify the soil as poorly drained, very
poorly drained, well drained, excessively drained, so there is a soil factor for that. Gallentine stated we also
do a proximity factor, the closer you are to the ditch, the more you pay, again that is still currently how we do
it, because the thought is the closer you are to the ditch the less facilities or tile lines you have to pay for to
use that ditch, whereas somebody that is a mile a way, they have more stuff that they have to maintain on
their own, some people agree with that, some don't Gallentine understands that.

It was commented by a landowner that the 5 people up at the top of the tile line that are getting the big
advantage because their tile lines are getting drained faster than yours, because you are at the bottom of the
tile line, they are getting as much benefit as you are against it, or more. Gallentine there are some where
sometimes we have used a usage or length factor, the farther you are up on the main open ditch the more
you pay, that hasn't been used by every Commission but that is an option that they can employ if they
choose, and then again, that report comes back and there is a public hearing and it is either approved or
modified by the Trustees, and if the landowners don't like it they can, go to the district court level. Gallentine
stated the one thing he will say about classification schedules and reclassification is, everything that is paid
for, for the district, has to be paid for by the landowners in the district, that is the folks who are in this room,
the folks who are not in this room, the DOT, any of these folks, for instance, if you go down, someone else
has to go up to compensate, so at the end of the day, it isn't a practice where you can just lower everybody,
the bills still has to be paid by just those landowners, that is only so big, so if someone goes down, someone
else goes up. Gallentine asked if he hit all their questions, you don't have to agree with Gallentine's answers,
just asking if he answered them.

It was asked by a landowner what reclassification would cost. Gallentine stated reclassification can get
interesting because there is probably one schedule for classification with this entire district. Gallentine asked
if there was laterals in this district, Smith stated not that were separated out in the classification, it is just one
schedule. Gallentine stated but there are laterals, what that means is if work is done on the Main open ditch,
it gets billed on that system if work is done on Lateral 1 it gets billed on that system, whether you are on
Lateral 1 or not. If your work is done on Lateral 2 it gets billed on that schedule, when you reclassify, the
Supervisors have the option that they can reclassify just the Main open ditch and then everything still gets
paid through that schedule, or they can say we want to know how Lateral 2 should be paid for and how
Lateral 1 should be paid for, how the Main should be paid for, so depending on how much of that goes on, it
really affects the cost. Gallentine stated he has done classifications and he has seen them cost $3,000 and
he has done some that have 30 some Laterals and those classifications cost close to $100,000, it just
depends on the extent.

It was asked by a landowner, how many years will this fix last. Gallentine stated there are no guarantees for
sure, Smith indicated the last time this was cleaned out was the early 1960's, there is some folks in here who
have memory, a landowner commented there was one cleanout later than that. Smith stated there is one
mentioned in your history summary, maybe it was 1974. Gallentine stated just a second, there are people

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/AgendaCenter/GenerateMinutesFile?id=1441&agendalD=1909 3/M



8/31/2021 6/23/2021 - Minutes

here older then he is, does that sound about right. Gallentine asked when they thought it was cleaned out. A
landowner replied the 1990's, or early 1980's, another stated they had seen it and it was the 1970's. Gilbert
asked if it was before are after Highway 20 was put in, Gallentine stated it would have been before Highway
20 was put in and down by the landfill, this ditch was extended and that may have been a bill that come
through, but that wasn't necessarily a cleanout of the whole thing, so to answer your question, we have
anywhere from the 1960's, 1970's or 1990's. Smith stated she could pull the history of repairs and
assessments for you, but cannot access those files from this computer, but could pull that for you later.

Gallentine stated what we could say was the previous repair lasted anywhere from 30 to 50 years, is that fair
to say, 30 to 50 years was the last time something major was done, maybe even 60 but that is probably
pushing it. Tim Broer stated it was maybe even the 1970's he could remember seeing it, but was not sure
what they did, the contractor did a really good job around Highway 65 but it got late in the season, late in
November he started to do a sloppy job, instead of pulling soil from both banks, he just tried to work off of
one to speed it up and Broer knows that the landowners as you would expect were not happy at all about
how he finished up, Broer kind of wonders if part of the problem now is because the top end wasn't done
exactly right. Gallentine stated he did not think so, and the reason he says that is if it was done in the 1970's
or 1980's, it would have been quite a while ago and really you do not have a whole lot of silt spread
throughout the whole thing. Gallentine stated as far as just working from one side or two, nowadays most
contractors, especially with only a foot and a half of silt will just work from one bank just because the way the
machines are they can get better reach and they don't see the advantage of being on two sides, now if we
had 3' or 4' of silt maybe they would be reaching out from both sides, if anything moves forward, Gallentine
would be surprised to see them reaching out to it from both sides. Broer stated it wasn't smooth. Gallentine
stated that is an issue even today, we always fight with that, it looked smooth when I first went over it with the
dozer, and then after the first rain all of a sudden it doesn't look smooth.

Gilbert asked if it was the 1970's when in fact it they put Highway 20 through and that was 175 to 1985
somewhere in there, when they put that Highway through, who would have protected the existing drainage
ditch when it went through, what was that process. Gallentine stated lowa Code is set up so that if a
Drainage District crosses a roadway, the road authority has to pay for that crossing, so when Hwy 20 was
built, the DOT should have paid for whatever was there, a culvert, or bridge, whatever was there, at that
crossing, same as tile, if they have to replace tile at that crossing they pay, for that tile replacement, the DOT
would have done that. Gallentine stated we don't see any evidence that Hwy 20 caused any siltation or
erosion, but again this is a very preliminary look, it is not very detailed. Gilbert stated that Dougan
complained about it then, it was within several hundred feet of Hwy 20. Gallentine stated it is but he does not
think it is related per say, it is like saying there is a meeting in Eldora, every time | am at a meeting in Eldora
they want me to spend money, no this meeting is for Drainage District 48, it just happens to be in Eldora, the
proximity Gallentine does not think is related. Gallentine stated we haven't dove deep into it, this is a
preliminary look, Gallentine would not be comfortable today going to the DOT and saying you messed
something up.

It was asked when you left that, that everyone that farms near it left a reasonable buffer strip. Gallentine
stated we did not look at usage of spoil banks, because the way these typically work, the Drainage District
has an easement right, for the open ditch and the spoil banks, but the landowners still have the right to use
those spoil banks as they see fit, so we have all seen some people have nice wide buffer strips, some people
farm nice and close, Gallentine did not really take that into account and did not look at that. Hoffman asked if
that would be part of an Engineer's Report. Gallentine stated we typically do not look at that usage in an
Engineer's Report, we typically look at just the district facility, we don't necessarily look at how people are
using that or not using that. Gallentine stated some counties have passed ordinances saying you can't farm
all the way up to an open ditch, Gallentine does not think Hardin County has had those, they have left that as
a landowner decision. It was asked if they do this project, it would be nice if someone could make a
recommendation as to how wide that buffer strip can be, 16" or something. Gallentine stated that is entirely
possible, if the Trustees want to implement a buffer strip on this type of thing, they have the authority to do
that for as wide as their spoil banks is, which would be where they spread the dirt out originally, wider than
that they don't have an easement there. It was asked how wide is the spoil bank usually. Gallentine stated it
depends on how wide the ditch is and how much dirt they dug out, it is really variable. It was asked any idea
on this one, how wide it was. Gallentine stated he did not know, again we did not get that deep into it.

Gallentine asked if there were other questions for him. It was stated by a landowner that this cost is a huge
bite of money. Gallentine stated it was a huge cost and thinks that is why the Trustees wanted to have this
preliminary meeting before it went any farther. Hoffman stated he recognized a few faces form other drainage

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/AgendaCenter/GenerateMinutesFile?id=1441&agendalD=1909 4/11



8/31/2021

6/23/2021 - Minutes

districts and there is a lot of new faces here too, and Hoffman is glad to see so many people showed up,
because we have drainage districts where we have triple the landowners but 1/10th of the attendees,
Hoffman is glad to see there is actual people engaged in their livelihood of production agriculture. Hoffman
stated what some Drainage District Trustees do is say, hey we are going to spend your money and you will
get a bill. Hoffman stated the three of us don't believe that is the best way to approach things, that is why we
are having a meeting today, so we have the means of getting a feel for what the people who end up paying
the bill do or don't want to do. Hoffman stated we have to remember that in that same arena, we by lowa
Code have to maintain the facilities, so if that means bandaging things here and there and that still works,
that is fine, or if it means you guys tell us that you want a large scale project done, we will go that direction as
well. Hoffman stated here for the next week, lowa Drainage Code still says the Trustees are allowed to spend
up to $50,000 without having to have a Public Hearing or an Engineer's Report. Gallentine interjected that is
$50,000 for a contractor, if that takes publication, engineering and stuff like that, that is above and beyond,
that is just the contractor's cost of $50,000. Hoffman stated that is a very valid, after July 31st, that number
goes up to $139,000, does that mean we are going to pull the trigger on every fix just because we can up to
$139,000, if it means you are at your leisure to give a good recommendation.

It was asked how many years can it be put off, 5 years or 10 years, what happens eventually to the Drainage
District. Hoffman stated from his perspective, lowa Code says we have to maintain facilities and they have to
be flowing, let's say that Kevin has issues with some drainage in his ground, we can find that he has crop
loss damages, and the Trustees can find that everyone pays his crop loss damages, the problem is any time
you don't want to pay for the work to be done, it gets worse and goes into another landowners area, and with
commodity prices you could spend a lot of money and have no resolution to the problem. Hoffman stated
crop losses aren't able to be claimed through drainage code. It was asked if 2021 was the tipping point
whereas 5 years ago it wasn't ready to be fixed or 10 years from now it will still be working. Gallentine stated
he does not know, Gallentine thinks you are asking how it is progressing and Gallentine stated the only snap
shots he has of it was when i was built, when it was cleaned out most recently and today, Gallentine does not
know if that 1-1/4' of silt has been there for 5 days or 5 years. Gallentine stated what you have going for you
is this district wants to erode and is going deeper, it is not a plus, for the landowners downstream, they are
getting that silt in whatever right of ways, but what it means for you guys is that in those areas it has eroded it
is not going to all of a sudden cover up tile outlets, it may but how quick it is going to happen Gallentine does
not know. Gallentine stated we have some drainage open ditches, every 10 years they are going to need
cleaned out, we had another one just south of the lowa Falls airport a few years ago, that one had not been
cleaned out for 100 years, and there was 4' of silt in it, and there were spots they could take the silt out, and
oh look, there is a tile outlet the farmer did not know was there, and you clean that tile outlet out and all of a
sudden the water is flowing. You don't want to get in that scenario, but luckily where you are eroding and not
silting, the likelihood of getting to it up in those blue areas is probably slim. Hoffman stated he did not think
there was one major event where we said holy cow, a lot of times with drainage you get work orders, and
someone says we have a blowout and we send out CGA and a contractor, and find a blowout on 100 year
old tile and we fix it. Hoffman stated in this situation if you look at the report and the more you look at it, we
thought it was better to have you and the landowners here, rather than just say have some fix with no long
term viability without a solution. Gallentine stated the biggest thing about this as it erodes, it meanders down
in the bottom which isn't as efficient as a straight path, it goes up and down, as it erodes which isn't as
efficient as a straight path, Gallentine stated as it erodes the efficiency isn't there, and you are going to run
the risk that you are going to start sloughing in the side banks more, those are the biggest problems we are
facing.

Gilbert asked given that we are in sever or worse drought, one of the things to worry about with this is you
want smoothness is that sand dry, doesn't compact and if we were to do this anytime soon and stay in the
drought, that probably would not give us a very satisfactory input. Gallentine stated he is not sure about
where she is going as far as compaction goes, there really wouldn't be any compacting on this project, where
it has eroded we would fill that back up, what we would do where it is eroded we would establish a new
grade along that line, we would widen out the bottom. Gilbert asked how would we keep that grade when it is
so dry. Gallentine stated how we would keep that is by scooping up the soil and spreading it out on the spoil
bank where it is very flat and spread it back out, you don't leave it down in the channel and you are not
compacting anything down in the channel, it is up on the sides, where it is not as steep and it is not going to
wash away. Hoffman stated the timeline on something like this, let's say there was to be some type of
consensus to do something today, then you are going to need a formal Engineer's Report, to do that, so you
are looking around 4 to 6 months for that, then we are going to do another landowner's meeting, then we are
going to have to have a bid letting, and then you are going to have to a bid opening and you are going to
have to award it, so best case scenario, you are looking at 16 to 18 months from now. Gallentine stated best
case scenario, would be if everyone in the room stated oh this is the best thing ever, Gallentine stated he

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/AgendaCenter/GenerateMinutesFile?id=1441&agendalD=1909 51



8/31/2021 6/23/2021 - Minutes

knows you are not going to, you would have that hearing, get your Engineer's Report and have a bid letting
next winter, and complete construction next summer if you wanted all this done, that is best case scenario,
so it isn't like we have got a guy sitting in a backhoe just ready to go out there and start working by any
means.

It was asked if Dougan hadn't reported this we would not have been here, is that right. Gallentine stated he
is not saying that. It was asked why the Trustees don't go out and check these open ditches every 5 to 10
years, would this have been filled with mud 20 years ago. Hoffman stated one of the reasons is we don't
have a full time drainage manager, someone that just goes out and patrols the drainage districts, we rely on
the landowners to be the eyes and ears of the districts, most of these districts, other than a handful, are in
production agriculture, there is one that goes through Radcliffe, a couple go through New Providence, so you
are seeing those things, so when we have a broken tile that loses a planter in it, we hear about it, or when
there is a blowout and somebody puts a grain cart sideways in it, we hear about it, when somebody is out in
their land and they see a hole, we hear about. Hoffman stated those are our ears and eyes, Hoffman is not
sure it is practical for us to have someone go out and patrol those, for everything that is done in a district,
someone has to pay for it, and Hoffman can't tax someone that lives in Eldora proper or lowa Falls proper,
that is not in a drainage district to pay for it. Anything that goes on in this drainage district gets billed to this
drainage district, anything that goes on in the drainage district in land that Hoffman owns, he gets a bill for
part of it, so at this point it is just not feasible to have someone going from district to district. Hoffman stated
we also have someone doing contract spraying for some districts, and we hope that when our contractor is
out there if he sees something is not quite right, they will say to the Clerk, can you let the engineer and
Trustees know. It was stated by a landowner that may be something we should look into in the future, walking
the ditches, because if this was done 10 years ago, everyone's bill would have been cheaper. Gallentine
stated he is not disagreeing, but the tough part of this is, that maybe this one needs walked every year but
let's say this project moves forward, when do you have that guy start walking it again, year one, year two,
year ten. Landowner stated it may need walked every five years, once you start something let's keep it up
rather than waiting until it's broke and then we have got to fix it. Gallentine stated he has heard from other
landowners that they do not want to spend a penny no matter what, even with a service like that, they would
not be happy with that, but again as district Trustees they can decide to that if they want. Hoffman stated we
have districts where they have done projects, and after we will have a seed warranty, a two year warranty on
materials, we will say in 2 years Smith will put a reminder on the drainage calendar, we had one pop up
today in another meeting, and the note will pop up, here is one, do we want to drive it and look at things or do
you want CGA to come out and look at it. Hoffman stated most of the time landowners will say we don't want
to pay that guy there, we will get on our ranger and our pony and go look at things ourselves, but you as
owners can say, from here on out, we want to watch those drainage districts and we can have an owners
meeting and make sure there is a consensus and we take care of your investment as best we can, but there
are some districts, that have unique demographics in Hardin County, because there are districts that will tell
you to spend whatever it takes because that is how | make my living off production agriculture, then you have
people that will say don't spend a penny, if it means water is barely trickling through that, that's okay because
that means that tile is working, there is that gap of people who are willing to spend a lot and people who
aren't willing to spend a penny, it is a hard sweet spot to find that suits everybody. Gallentine stated the other
thing he wants to make sure people leave with is Dougan did not request this, he had one thing that was
happening on his farm that he turned in a work order for, while we were out there we saw these other things,
Gallentine does not want anyone to go out there and go home and say Dougan wants to spend a million
bucks, that is not accurate.

It was asked where does this drainage district start, where are the headwater located. Gallentine stated this
district's headwaters start just north of Hwy 20 about, a half a mile west of HWY 65 and then it continues
southeast over by the landfill and it empties out right past the landfill into that creek, whatever the name of
that creek is there. Smith stated we will pull up a map of the district for reference, and stated this is the
outline of your district here in blue, it goes from the northwest corner of Ellis township and goes to the
southeast and ends just southeast of Owasa. Smith stated the lines reference the actual tile, it looks like you
have a main there and a couple of laterals and then it turns into the open ditch. Smith stated if you turn on
water labels on Beacon it might or might not tell you the name of the creek. Gallentine stated it might be a
named creek but he does not know what it is.

It was stated by a landowner that back when this was put in, the top end was full, they put in a new bridge
some years ago, on 190th St. Gallentine stated the County Engineer is responsible for putting in bridges, not
Gallentine, but the County engineer, it is his understanding that they do a survey to make sure that they are
at the right elevation, beyond that he does not know, not sure. It was asked how many acres were in this
drainage district. Smith stated 7,085 acres. Gallentine stated almost 7,100 acres, it was asked if there had

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/AgendaCenter/GenerateMinutesFile?id=1441&agendalD=1909 6/11



8/31/2021

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/AgendaCenter/GenerateMinutesFile?id=1441&agendalD=1909

6/23/2021 - Minutes

been any other complaints in this district. Gallentine asked how far back do you want to go. Smith stated she
could pull a history of drainage repairs from the files and put those in a letter, but again unfortunately those
files are unavailable here, Smith stated we have a district file that will show every repair that was done since
the district was created, we can pull that file and create an outline for you that will show every time a repair
was made and what the assessment value that was assessed at that time. A landowner mentioned that we
had some washouts previously. Gallentine stated if he remembered correctly on the farm to the west a few
years ago, we had quite a few washouts, and went in and did some repairs a few years ago, we went in and
did repairs and put in a few new service drains. It was asked, if the ditch was working like it was supposed to
other than washing out her or there. Gallentine stated it is actually working differently than most, it is actually
eroding so what that means is you have faster flow than most other ditches. A landowner stated it is actually
silting in somewhere, so it is building up. It was stated by a landowner that 3 or 4 years ago, we had some
huge rains so you you can expect some sloughing off of the ditches when we have those 6" rains in 2 days, it
is not going to be perfect, we had two huge years where we are going to do some damage but you can't say
for sure that it has done that much damage. Gallentine stated he would agree that the rain and the volume of
water contributes to the damage, what Gallentine would not say is that when you have a flat bottom and the
bank sloughs off,the channel has somewhere to go around it, when you go down to the point where you have
a vee bottom that sloughs off, there is no where for that water to go when it sloughs off, it has to wait until it
goes over the top, so the geometrics of your ditch are changing. Gallentine stated yes, weather does
contribute especially heavy rainfalls.

A landowner stated that being lower than the grade and being a vee bottom does not bother him, if it was too
high and plugging your outlets then that is an issue, like you said earlier, you are not bringing your grade up
in those grayed areas, just making it flatter. Gallentine stated everyone just needs to understand that if it is
below grade and it is vee bottomed it is going to function different than any other ditch you look at, it is still
functioning, it is just different, and the other thing is, this is just a snapshot. Gallentine stated that blue area
where it is silted in, Gallentine does not know if that is moving, it is entirely possible that is being moved
downstream, maybe it is stuck there, maybe it has been there for 10 years. Gallentine does not know, he is
just telling you that is when we went out and surveyed it that is where it is. A landowner stated he is not
hearing any of the landowners in the blue area of the map complaining about tile outlets. Gallentine stated he
does not know how many landowners we have here in the blue area, and does not know where the tile
outlets are in the blue area. A landowner stated there are three of us here. It was stated by a landowner that
it is eating at the bank at the outside of the curve. Gallentine stated that would be one of the areas we
labeled as a slough area. It was asked if in order to fix it if it needs to be dredged out so it goes back to
where it is supposed to, and maybe put in some riprap, but if you do nothing it won't get fixed. Gallentine
stated if you do nothing it will just keep eating away, it is just a matter of how fats it is eating it out, this is not
a fast action either. A landowner stated we also had a 6" rain in two days, we are going to have rains like that
on into the future. Gallentine stated at the end of the day that is why we are having these meetings, it is your
drainage, your ditch, your bill. Gilbert stated it was 5 to 15 years ago, west of Buckeye there was a drainage
district west of Buckeye, and asked if Gallentine was familiar with that story. Gallentine stated there is a lot of
drainage west of Buckeye so please go ahead. Gilbert stated the estimated bills and the actual bills differed
largely. Gallentine stated he is assuming the only story you heard is that the actual bills were higher than the
estimated bills. Gilbert stated much greater. Gallentine stated you never hear of when the actual bills are less
than the estimated bills. Gilbert stated no. Gallentine stated exactly, those do exist just so you know. Gilbert
asked if we are any where near that situation. Gallentine stated let me tell you the situation, this is a very
rough cost, if people are interested and they order an Engineer's Report, that will have a more detailed cost,
at the end of the day you will still have a bid letting and you will get an exact cost from the contractor, if the
contractor encounters something nobody expected, good or bad, you can have change orders, so that cost
can go up and down. Gallentine stated then at the end you have a Completion Hearing with that final cost, so
along the way those costs will be changed and tweaked, but landowners will be informed if the choose to
attend the meetings. Hoffman stated material costs, inflation and everything going on around us in society.
Gilbert stated some of that project involved some redrawing or rechanneling of the district and asked if there
was anything like that being proposed with any of this. Gallentine stated when we get down to the bottom
and you have this little wiggle, yes we will straighten that, now if you have the ditch here and 100; over it
would be straight, we are not going to move the ditch over, but you will have some straightening down in the
bottom of the channel yes. It was stated by a landowner Gilbert may have been talking about moving the tile,
not the open ditch. Gilbert stated she was talking about moving the open ditch more. Gallentine stated that
one is not ringing a bell, any of those things we would propose to do would be disclosed in that Engineer's
Report and at that hearing if it goes that direction. Gallentine stated he knows we don't have a lot of answers
for those questions, the Trustees could have said go do the Engineer's Report, and spend $10,000 to
$20,000 of these folks money, but they didn't want to do that, and said let's have this meeting instead.

7M



8/31/2021 6/23/2021 - Minutes

A landowner asked do we get to vote whether we get this done or not. Gallentine stated these are your
district Trustees, they are the ones who have the final authority, in the meetings Gallentine has been with
them in the past, they value your opinions. Smith stated she brought slips of paper for you to write on
whether you are interested in moving forward. Hoffman stated we use a democratic process, and has never
been to one of these meetings where we have had each landowner vote and not take their recommendation,
because Hoffman hopes if he was in your seat and you were in his seat, you would offer him the same
courtesy. Gallentine stated he does not want to brag you guys up too much, but other counties don't do this,
the Supervisors just kind of listen to you and make their decision, Gallentine thinks this is very decent of
them and kind of nice. A landowner asked if a reassessment was done in 1910. Gallentine stated that would
have been the original classification, if you redo that, it would be a reclassification. A landowner stated he
would love to see you guys do a reclassification also. Gallentine stated he will let the landowners as that,
because if Gallentine asks that it looks like he is trying to drum up business and he is not. A landowner
stated he would love to see a reclassification, he is not sure if it would save us any money or not, but would
still like to see one done. Granzow stated just ask us to do that. The landowner stated like right now just ask
you to do one, okay, | am asking you to do one. Granzow stated we can have that on the agenda for next
week. Hoffman stated here is what | would like to do with that, Hoffman stated Smith has papers, and loves
democracy in process, so here is how it works, if a husband and wife own a parcel together, you get one
vote, or a husband and wife that own multiple parcels, you each get one vote, do you understand, nobody
can say | have my wife and I, our 6 kids and 6 grand-kids here to stack the deck. Hoffman stated at this point
would you please pass out ballots to verify landowners interest.

It was asked if this is yes or no to do a reclassification, and Hoffman stated yes. Granzow stated we are
looking at a reclassification would it be possible to separate laterals. Smith stated she had a landowner
question for Gallentine is the cost of a reclassification included in the estimate of $1,000,000. Gallentine
stated no reclassification is not included in the estimate, Gallentine stated he heard someone say why don't
we just do a show of hands, we have tried that before and they don't want to tell their neighbor what they are
thinking and offend someone, so that is why we use paper. Hoffman stated if the reclassification is yes, then
we will vote again to ask if you want to separate the laterals from the main, that is an additional layer of
equity, that will be the next question depending on the outcome, then we really need to know, even if the
reclassification is approved, do you want to just do nothing and just let things go, do you want to have CGA
do an Engineer's Report looking at a large scale project or a third option would be, just come in to those
certain areas that are silted in and clean those out and just make temporary fixes. Hoffman stated once we
get this, we will get to that in a minute. McClellan stated let's just do one at a time. Gallentine asked if he was
correct in that this is just a vote on reclassification right now. Hoffman stated yes.

It was asked by a landowner, if we do a reclassification, do you have a surveyor that will go out and redraw
the maps or do you use LIDAR and maps. Gallentine stated if you are reclassifying we can go out and do
that, we will not go out and survey each tract, if there is something that is questionable it is possible we will
survey it but we will get most of that off of LIDAR and the online mapping. Gallentine stated just so you
know, he would echo Hoffman's comments, he appreciates your participation, this is a very hard decision to
make. Smith stated she had everyone's sheets back and asked should we start tallying, Hoffman stated he
thinks so. Smith and Hoffman tallied the votes. Hoffman stated there were 15 YES votes to do a
reclassification and and 2 NO votes, so Hoffman would entertain a motion to order a reclassification.
Granzow asked with laterals being split out. Hoffman stated that would be a second motion.

Motion by Granzow to order a reclassification on Drainage District 48. Second by McClellan.

In additional discussion on the motion, Hoffman stated he would like the minutes to reflect that there were 15
YES votes for reclassification and 2 NO votes, any other discussion. Hoffman stated hearing none he called
for the vote.

All ayes. Motion carried.

Hoffman stated next will be whether to include laterals or to separate the laterals. A landowner asked what
the benefit was in including the laterals or separating the laterals. Hoffman stated if we separate the laterals
only the people that utilize those laterals would be assessed for that part of it. Gallentine stated only those
people in the watershed of that lateral will pay for that lateral, now if something happens to a lateral,
everyone in the district pays for that whether they use that lateral or not, Granzow stated if an improvement is
ever done, it would have to be done anyway. Gallentine stated that is a good point because Code does say if
you ever want to improve this district, like let's say somebody says hey, let's move this ditch to 50' wide, you

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/AgendaCenter/GenerateMinutesFile?id=1441&agendalD=1909 8/1



8/31/2021 6/23/2021 - Minutes

would have to do a separate classification, so if an improvement project ever comes up you would be forced
to separate these laterals. Granzow stated the big thing is, you would hear how much money it is here, and it
doesn't affect me at all, but you are still paying for it, it doesn't matter if you are on the main or the laterals, so
those people in that watershed or lateral would pay, and everyone else is left alone. Gallentine stated it really
divvies up the responsibility of what you pay for is more of what you utilize or what you could utilize.

Hoffman stated if you vote yes on this question, in the reclassification, we will separate the laterals from the
main. Gallentine stated what this means is the reclassification will have one schedule for the main and one
schedule for each of the laterals, so if work is done on that lateral only the people on that lateral will pay. It
was asked if they worked on the main who would pay. Gallentine stated if you work on the main, everybody
pays on the main's schedule. Hoffman stated so somebody is not paying on something that they do not have
direct benefit. It was asked how many laterals there are. Pierce stated there is just one, Lateral 1. Gallentine
stated it looks like one or two laterals according to this map, but we would have to do some historical
research as well, probably a couple at least. Smith stated there have been some questions, if you have more
than one company, one trust, one family parcel that you represent, | should have given you that many slips, if
those of you are here representing more than one entity, one partnership, one trust or family plot that is titled
in those names, you should have that many slips, so if there is anyone else that needs more slips let Smith
know. Gallentine stated if your are representing ABC Corp and XYZ Corp you get one slip for each of them.
Hoffman stated that was correct.

Smith and Hoffman tallied the votes. Smith stated there were 22 total votes, 21 YES votes and 1 NO votes.
Hoffman stated he would accept a motion to include the separation of the laterals in the reclassification
order.

Motion by Granzow to include the separation of the laterals in the reclassification order. Second by
McClellan.

Hoffman asked if there was any addition discussion on the motion. Hoffman stated he would like the minutes
to reflect that there were 21 YES votes and 1 NO vote. Hoffman stated hearing no additional discussion, he
called for the vote.

All ayes. Motion carried.

Gallentine stated just from listening to you folks, he thinks there are probably three options with that map
moving forward, which would be get an Engineer's Report and do the full thing or look at it, do nothing, or the
third option is in those blue areas on the map where there is silt, just take out the silt, do those three sound
like reasonable options to vote on or are there other ideas. Granzow asked what was the original request.
Gallentine stated the original request was to fix this one little blow out in my field. It was asked if there was an
option where we just don't do anything. Gallentine stated that was the second option, do nothing. It was
asked which option just takes the silt out. Gallentine stated that was the third option. It was asked if we take
the third option, what happens to the rest of the ditch. Gallentine stated the rest of the ditch would be
maintained as it is, if there is another report of a blowout, we will go out and fix it, if anyone reports
something larger we look at a large scale project to go out and fix it. Hoffman stated those are the three
options you can write 1, 2 or 3 on there. Granzow stated the costs on those options, #1 is $1,000,000,
nothing on #2, and the #3 option would cost what. Gallentine stated give him a moment. It was asked #3
where we take out the silt, at the top end where it is narrow at the bottom, is that taking out silt. Gallentine
stated only the blue areas of the map is where we would take out silt, there is some at the very top, and a
little bit where you are, it would just be the blue area, let me see if | can get you a rough idea on cost,
Gallentine is not sure if that was separated out on the estimate.

It was asked by a landowner, how is that billed if we do the # 3. Hoffman stated he would hope that we
would get the reclassification done, adopt the reclassification, and that would be billed in accordance with the
new classification. It was asked until we get the reclassification, should we even vote on this. Gallentine
stated it is your call. Hoffman stated yes, and asked how far out do you think the reclassification would be.
Gallentine stated it would take 4 to 6 months. Hoffman stated so it would take 4 to 6 months and then finding
a contractor to do it. Gallentine stated let's put it like this, if you guys just want to do the blue areas as the 3rd
option, the cost is high enough we still have to do an Engineer's Report, we would have to have another
meeting and then we would have to have a bid letting so it isn't like the vote today would be final to that, it
would just ne whether you wanted to do an Engineer's Report going towards that option, just looking at his
notes, just to take that silt out, Gallentine thinks you would still be in that $150,000 to $250,000 range so you

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/AgendaCenter/GenerateMinutesFile?id=1441&agendalD=1909 9/M1



8/31/2021 6/23/2021 - Minutes

would still need an Engineer's Report, so if you vote for 1 or 3 we are going to need an Engineer's Report.
Hoffman stated starting July 1st, the threshold for that moves to $139,000 so you are still going to need an
Engineer's Report, anything over $139,000 will require an Engineer's Report. Gallentine stated but if nobody
is interested there is no sense in paying for an Engineer's Report to do that, why pay for the report if nobody
wants to do the project. Hoffman stated an Engineer's Report on just removing the silt Hoffman assumes will
be a whole lot less intensive than the whole project. Granzow asked if Gallentine had a guess on costs on
option 3. Gallentine stated his guess would be $150,000 to $200,000.

It was asked by a landowner if we were to vote on #3, how many years would it be before we ended up doing #1
anyway. Hoffman stated that was a good question. Gallentine stated it all depends on how quick this thing keeps
eroding at some point it is going to stabilize itself, and it is going to quit eroding and it will hit that grade, but
Gallentine does not know what that grade is, nature is telling us, we are not telling it for those eroded areas.
Gallentine stated the nice thing is you are going deeper so you don't have to worry about plugging tile outlets,
most ditches they get shallower. It was asked by a landowner, that the map does not show the whole ditch, you are
not showing the lower end, Gallentine stated no, because that was the piece that was extended in 1974 or 1975,
where we stopped was where the district originally stopped, once we got to the point where that was below the site
grade, we didn't go any further east. It was asked by a landowner if the stuff that was downstream was okay.
Gallentine stated we haven't looked at it, he would assume that most of it is probably deeper like this is, that would
be his guess.

Hoffman and Smith tallied the votes. There were 12 votes for Option #2 do nothing and 10 votes for Option #3 to
remove the silt in just the blue areas of the map. Hoffman stated the consensus was to do nothing, as long as the
people have spoken that brings Hoffman great joy to Hoffman's heart today and what we can decide to do today is
the reclassification, and once that reclassification report is finalized, we will have another meeting and we will
come back together and talk about how life is great and grand and then we will rehash all that data and then we
will move along. Hoffman stated he has to remind you we have to maintain the facility, and what that means is we
have maintain not just the physical pipe and the open ditch as well. Hoffman stated he will be honest with and tell
you if things don't get better in one spot or get worse, we may have to do a little bit of cleaning. It was asked by a
landowner if Senator Grassley is saying the clean water act will help, is this project available or eligible for any of
these funds. Hoffman stated he likes the way this person is thinking, in Hardin County we have two CREP water
projects, Steve Perry did one by his place and the Stolees did one over by Radcliffe, so Hoffman thinks it is
something worth looking into, and when we have the next meeting, remind Hoffman of the State's engineer on this
project. Smith stated it was Mike Bourland. Hoffman stated we could ask Mike Bourland if this will be an option for
a clean water project or a CREP wetland. Gallentine stated he would throw this out there, this is clean water
money, so that means slowing the water down and doing some kind of treatment, that is why you are seeing a lot
of CREP wetlands, they are very big in funding that not necesarily as excited in funding something that send water
downstream faster, so just remember the stuff we are talking about is about efficiency, getting water out of this
district as fast as we can, they are more interested in retaining water, getting the nutrients out of it and releasing it
slowly. It was asked by a landowner if we are talking about silt that might include buffer strips and so forth.
Gallentine stated he couldn't agree with you more, those in field practices are great, just saying whenever we talk
with those folks, just remember that from their point of view, it is about water quality, not necessarily making sure
your field drains, but if they have money we will sure talk to them. Hoffman stated if it is something you are okay
with contacting Mike Bourland and he can get the information months ahead of time and he can get the feasibility
study and look at it, if that is what you guys want to look at, then let's look at it.

Granzow stated we had a question brought up about how many years should we revisit or visit this this if people
are interested later, or if we feel that someone should report issues, Granzow stated currently it is the landowner's
responsibility to document issues. Hoffman asked if there was any interest in contracting with someone to look
over this district on an annual basis. Gilbert asked if we are going ahead with the reclassification even if we said
do nothing. Hoffman stated correct. Gallentine stated we have already said we will do nothing. Hoffman stated he
can guarantee you, he does not have a crystal ball but in 5, 10 or 15 to 20 years, your kids, grand-kids or
nephews/nieces are going to have to deal with this, so to bring equity to those kids, grand-kids, nieces/nephews,
doing the reclassification now is probably a good thing now to find out where that equity is now for later, you are
doing your lineage a favor. It was asked by a landowner, of all the drainage districts the Trustees are involved with,
how many have been reclassified, maybe half or 3/4ths. Hoffman stated maybe 10%, we have over 200 districts.
Gallentine stated we typically do 2 to 4 a year, and there are 200 districts. Hoffman stated you guys and gals are
here today discussing something that most or a lot of people don't even know they are in a drainage district, they
don't know they are in one until they get an assessment, Hoffman stated he had to read through his grandmother's
diary, who passed away almost 10 years ago, and he read through it because she kept track of things like this,
there was never an assessment, so it was one of those things that was odd. Hoffman stated as the other Trustees
would tell you, if the legislators wanted to do us a favor they would make this something you would have to
disclose on a deed or a title, so when someone is buying it, you would have to disclose | am in a drainage district
just like you would have to disclose | have a septic system, because there are some projects going on in the
County, where if you wanted to get rich quick, you could sell 40 acres for premium dollars and the new owners

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/AgendaCenter/GenerateMinutesFile?id=1441&agendalD=1909 10/11



8/31/2021 6/23/2021 - Minutes

would be stuck with possibly upwards of a $200,000 bill. Smith stated it is possible. Hoffman stated | wouldn't even
have to disclose that to you, | could sell you land in a drainage district knowing that there is a big project that just
went on and you were going to get a big bill on the next tax cycle. It was asked by a landowner, even though you
own the land when the vote was made to say for example do option #1, and six to 18 months for the project to get
completed, you would still not be liable for that. Smith stated lowa law does not require disclosure at the time of
sale for the fact that your land is within a drainage district, we do not have to note that, the owner does not have to
disclose that nor does the realtor, so you could full well know there is an assessment coming for a work that is in
process, and sell before that project is assessed, and that assessment stays with the land, so that next owner will
be responsible for that assessment. Gallentine stated the worst example of this was we had a project 5 to 10 years
ago where we had an 18" and a 24" tile parallel to each other, they were in bad shape, so we were going to pull
them out for 1/2 a mile and put in an open ditch, the place where we were putting them was owned by a little old
lady, she was in a nursing home, she didn't attend any of the meetings and low and behold after they approved the
project before the construction starts she dies, the farm gets sold, the auctioneer does not disclose this fact, and
we show up with a backhoe on a guy who thought he bought this big farm that was wide open and we are going to
take and put an open ditch in it for 1/2 a mile. Gallentine stated this is probably the worst example of this, because
the Auctioneer is not required to disclose it, and she is not alive any more and her heirs are out of state and they
don't care anymore.

It was stated by a landowner that they would still like to see if there is an Engineer or Extension Service come up
with a drainage designed buffer strip for this. Gallentine stated those are the folks that would do this. The
landowner stated he knows it is not mandatory, but we need advice. Hoffman stated it is a service provided
though. Gallentine stated sure. Hoffman stated we don't have those resources but the folks at the lowa Falls
Extension Office and the DNR, we can enlist their help. Smith stated we can ask for some guidance on best
practices and distribute that information to you. The landowner stated he thinks that they do a decent job. Hoffman
stated he agrees with him, and anything we can do to utilize from the state above and beyond, they may not
always give the best advice but it is something to go on. Hoffman stated that Smith can ask for that information.
Hoffman asked if there were any additional questions before we adjourn today. A landowner stated that he would
like to thank the Trustees for running a quite adequate meeting.

6. Possible Action

Action taken today was: Trustees approved a motion order a reclassification of Drainage District 48 and the
Trustees approved a motion to include a separation of the laterals in the reclassification.

7. Other Business
Hoffman asked for any other business for the Trustees. Hearing none, Hoffman stated Smith will be back at the
office shortly. Smith stated if you have any questions after the meeting to please stop in or call the Auditor's Office,

and she would be happy to answer any questions. The Trustees and Gallentine thanked the landowners for their
attendance.

8. Adjourn Meeting

Motion by McClellan to adjourn. Second by Granzow. All ayes. Motion carried.

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/AgendaCenter/GenerateMinutesFile?id=1441&agendalD=1909 11/11



REGULAR DRAINAGE MEETING
Wednesday, August 18, 2021 9:30 AM
This meeting was held electronically and in person.

8/18/2021 - Minutes

1. Open Meeting

Hardin County Drainage Chairperson BJ Hoffman opened the meeting. Also present were Trustee Renee McClellan;
Trustee Lance Granzow; Lee Gallentine, Clapsaddle-Garber Associates (CGA); Michael Pearce, Network Specialist;
Jamie Geissler, Accounts Payable; and Denise Smith, Assessor Clerk.

2. Approve Agenda
Motion by Granzow to approve the agenda. Second by McClellan. All ayes. Motion carried.
3. Approve Minutes

Motion by McClellan to approve the minutes to Drainage Meeting dated 06-30-2021 and DD 9 Completion Hearing dated
06-02-2021. Second by Granzow. All ayes. Motion carried.

4. Approve Claims For Payment

Motion by McClellan to approve the claims for payment with pay date of 06-20-2021. Second by Granzow. All ayes.
Motion carried.

DD 9 WO 229 — ENG SVCS 4/30/21 — 7/30/21 Compl Hrg Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc $983.75
DD 55-3 WO 201 Tile repair, parts, labor, equip. Honey Creek Land Improv. LLC $5,258.64

DD 56 WO 3 — ENG SVCS 6/25/21-7/30/21 ROW Acq Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc $1,832.95
DD 88 WO 315 — ENG SVCS to 7/30/21 Inv of Blowout Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc $791.80
DD 121 WO 295 — ENG SVCS 5/28/21-7/30/21 Inv & Rep Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc $737.00
DD 131 WO 310 — ENG SVCS 5/28/21 — 8/05/21 Inv Sum Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc $1,050.95
DD H-S 35-1 ENG SVCS TO 7/30/21 Inv of Open Ditch Clapsaddle-Garber Assoc $1,992.55

5. Discuss W Possible Action - Honey Creek Land Improvement Progress Report

No update available today, this will be on the next Drainage Agenda.

6. DD 36 WO 312 - Discuss W Possible Action - Observation Report

Gallentine stated we just wanted to circle around on this one, that this Work Order request was from Landowner Craig
Duncan, we weren't out there within the week he wanted, so then the crop came up and he said we don't want you out
there until the crops come out, he is supposed to call and let us know when the crops are up. Gallentine stated he just
wanted to make sure that was your wish and desire, and Gallentine does not see any reason to go against that as dry as
it has been, and wanted to make sure you are ok waiting until fall. Gallentine stated there was water backed up in the field



and it the Y where the lateral meets the main is out in the field, and Gallentine thinks that is where the issue is. Granzow
stated he would definitely wait until the crops are out, and as soon as the crops are out, get in there to get it investigated.

Motion by by Granzow to authorize CGA to do further investigation and repair, and wait until crops are out of the field per
landowner request. Second by McClellan. All ayes. Motion carried.

7. Discuss W Possible Action - New Work Order Requests

No new work order requests at this time.

8. Other Business

DD 3 met on Monday, and shared an email with the Trustees, that they will hold a continuation of their Public Hearing in
September. There was some interest in moving forward with some investigation into the area on the east side of the
tracks,, there is a portion that would be the proposed open ditch improvement that would flow into a closed tile on the east
side of the tracks before it goes back into an open ditch. Smith stated she thinks the landowners had interest in the open
ditch option but would like to see what that would look like, continuing it all the way through to the outlet. Gallentine stated
they had interest in expanding the project and actually doing more, they are in a unique situation because DD 3 in this are
was originally an open ditch in 1906, and went to a closed tile in 1913, so we can probably go go back to the open ditch
design without too much interference from the NRCS, they are a little bit unique in that sense. Granzow asked what year
they went to tile. Gallentine stated 1913 to 1917, it was less than ten years later they went to tile.

DD 56 Easements- Gallentine updated that their easement team has been working on wrapping up the last landowner
easement, and that one is for pasture area. Gallentine stated he just wanted to check, that tenant has an electric fence
and a cattle waterer out there that will probably end up being disturbed, through negotiations, it would work best to have
the tenant put that stuff back, instead of having the contractor put that back in case some of it is not quite right, the bill on
that will be about $5,000 to put the electric fence and the waterer back in, and Gallentine stated he did not need formal
action just wanted to make sure that the Trustees were ok with that. Granzow stated yes, what is our cost if we were to do
it, would it be more. Gallentine stated he would say so just because he does not know if the waterer and how all that
works. Granzow stated that is a good enough answer for him. Gallentine stated the contractor would just as soon not
mess with it. Granzow stated he is fine with it. Gallentine stated it would be cheaper than if we do it.

Granzow stated he got an email on August 9th from Lucas Burton about some drainage issue and asked if Smith was
aware of this. Smith stated she was and had called Burton back, and stated he had another call and said he would call
Smith right back and has not heard back from him again, Smith stated she would reach out to Burton again. Granzow
stated he had some questions about what steps to take at this point, he has been in contact with Taylor Roll, and he was
just wondering if there was some guidance. Smith stated she will reach out to Burton and see if we can get something
worked out for a new work order.

9. Adjourn Meeting

Motion by Granzow to adjourn. Second by Hoffman. All ayes. Motion carried.



CGA

ENGINEERS « LAND SURVEYORS

Utility Observation Report

Utility Permit #2020-12

General Information

Project Name and Number:
Drainage District Number:
Drainage District Facility ID:
Project Location:

(1/4, Sec, Twp, Rng and road)

Date of Observation:

Observer Name/Title:

Heart of Jowa Communication Coop fiber optic

cable
DD 63

Main

NEY NEY Section 19 & NWY% NW4 Section 20
Township 88 North, Range 19 West

6/2/2021, 10/29/2020

Chris Sweeney

Field Observations

District facility type:

Utility Orientation:

Source of utility elevation
and/or location:

Utility Elevation:

Source of district facility
elevation and/or location:

District Facility Elevation:
(include where measured)

Vertical clearance from
district facility:

(must be greater than 1-foot
for tile, and 5-feet for
designed open ditch bottom)

X Tile
Other:
O Parallel

[J Over Under
Other:

U] Probed J Exposed
Other:
1080.82’

L] Probed Exposed
Other:

1085.16’ (Top Tile)

3.75°

0J Open Ditch

Crossing [ Overhead

(0 Same Elevation

Utility Reported

O Utility Reported

Page 1 of 2

16922-DD\04-Design-Project Management\Engineering Report\6922 - Utility Investigation Summary - DD63.docx



CGA

ENGINEERS « LAND SURVEYORS
Utility Permit #2020-12
Horizontal clearance from
District Tile or
Open Ditch centerline:
Tile outlets within 25-feet

relocated? (If applicable) O Yes 0 No N/A
Original tile size & material: ] RCP O CMmP J SW HDPE
J DW HDPE VCP 7”

Other:
Tile replaced by utility? O Yes No O N/A
Tile replacement material: UJ RCP OJ CMmP 0 N/A

Other:
Condition of District tile: Small hole in top, HDPE patch installed over hole by utility.
Signage present? O Yes X No L1 N/A

Notes

Utility should be contacted to verify installation of signage.

Inspector’s Signature: Date:

Page 2 of 2
1:\6922-DD\04-Design-Project Management\Engineering Report\6922 - Utility Investigation Summary - DD63.docx



Drainage Utility Permit Application
Hardin County

Applicant: Heart of lowa Communication Coop - Jay Duncan
Contact Email: jduncan@heartofiowa.coop

Contact Phone: (641) 486-2211

Utility Type: N/A - Utility Permits Only

Drainage District: DDs\DD 44 (51069)

Description of Work: DDs 44,—-62,—1,—1-28,—7-8;@ 893894 - Heart of lowa - Install fiber optic cable in rural
areas of Eldora & Steamboat Rock. Will work with CGA on facility crossings.

Pursuant to Code of lowa Section 468.186, approval is hereby requested for the right, privilege and authority to
construct, operate and maintain utilities on, over, across or beaneath established Hardin County Drainage Districts,
subject to the attached Requirements for Construction On, Over, Across or Beneath Established Drainage Districts.

Failure to comply with said requirements shall be ground for revocation of the permit by the Hardin County Board of
Supervisors.

Applicant Signature Date

Submit Form and Location Plan To: Hardin County Auditor's Office
Attn: Drainage Clerk
1215 Edgington Ave, Suite 1
Eildora, IA 50627
Phone (641) 939-8111
Fax (641) 939-8245
drainage@hardincountyia.gov

For Office Use Only

Application Approval:

By: Date:

Board of Supervisor Chairman, Acting as Drainage District Trustee

APPROVED PERMIT #: 2020-12

DApphtalmn aTCM
DG'-S Annotatian
DApploval Emailed




DD 43

o0 ¥
Y/ o~y DRAINAGE A20-6 HWY sl 19
- (oo#t  TILES X-ING
: N
pne? N
Marn //
A20 )
6
3 N\ | _ _ﬁ\ 19476 NQ Sy
19 W. l_._A _>mo\:
@A20/11A § |
mva_mmoog 19647
 oo#3 |
|
Cuo: { AZO _._<m _u>4.>
\ / 19979 VERIFY EXISTANCE)

J \_\ / NS BFO24

_\ Y 4 A ! \ /
- > S N [ o )

a o B el _|p3s|__ _ _ L

! e _ Fi e

- | o &) A20C/
—_—)

‘, 30602 30728 A20/9 ﬂ

fAaunn e “wie . RFO 79 «A.\‘_ N,: _ | L BFO 24 / Zn )N&OO



CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING DATE: 20210~ 27
OBSERVATION REPORT

DAYS OF WEEK:

PROJECT NUMBER: 6922 S IMITIWITIF |S
SHEET NO. { oF [

COUNTY,ROUTE,ROAD: ) (=

ocation: UV Avg s oF pwh 2o

DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND MATERIAL USED FOR EACH OPERATION, INCLUDING CONTRACTOR/SUB
NAME, ITEM NO. AND LOCATION

Al Jige

AR W E P oM SITE  CokOMT EING T E
MY our DokE

Boggosfra= 1080, 82
AT {_ por
4!
3PS
X 230 ohE
g T CAuEn pDMRIN W/ i e
HERT S Towd THEY Bt
_S#IZ  THRT THE Guy TR &532_,_
THE Y KWRP e MELT /Y H it
CReppY?) SP0 THAT THE
TILE O n~OT CcABSS T HE 377
Loro S0 THREY Mol TRE Bors
TiLe W thHE E SINE oF \
THE RoRro Lo

I Certify that the work described in this reporfjwas incorporated into this contract unless otherwise noted.
Date Prepared: c020 ~=lo —29

D Engineer

Users\Ryken Standard Forms and Procedures\Company Forms\Construction Engineering Observation Report (1)

Observer’s Signature:

Reviewed by:

Date Reviewed




BORE coowim e N,

el AR
IEnTH @ CockN




Project Diary

Project: (92T ;
. Days Report Proj. Mgr.

ool Charged: No, T
Contractor: Date: ¢ —2- 2(

Superintendent: Weather Conditions: Precip.: | Temp. Hi: °

S Y ” Temp. Low: °

INSPECTOR: Chmy Sirents, Contractor:
Time Arrived: G5 Time Left: 1048 Time Arrived: Time Left:

1. General Remarks and Work Accomplished:
AARLZ D OW S|TE Amd FWO 2 ExXcacar oeds

wl Vvige :
DUER TILE THE v Hou€(* 3Gy 4 278 bl PO Bloxen
/M THE TOf ©F T
784 Moo HT=1138 @ 75%€an=[0,97 y
k 385 Mo# HT = 11.38° C6foLrav= lq.léz \/T o
B3Ry ToP OF TIE EEV T (084,77 - v
I @s foPoF Tk BeEwv = '/083‘.16 : weoF o sgs o §TUE
i 386 G (S Ebv -,:2072\/6 "“‘gcem )
RBonk NEATH IS -3 & .
Cokanfnce = 2.0 2@ H385 | <

-
2—C€Hanges or Extra VWork oraered:— N
- A y :+0,£ Srﬁtﬂ to PATCH MILE | (A ED oAy W/ tEars oF

THLKED ToLEE
Lo, HE SR ramt NE okl GET 1T PRATCHEO Ton, oARA G OR

THO  EAvENyA

3. Test Samples Taken:

4. Visitors to Site:

5. Other Work Crews or Project (utilities, subcontractors, etc.) and Work Done:

6. Attachments (total sheets attached 0_):

 [h

Clapsaddle-Garber Associates, Inc
I b - . |
g"()"s.‘;c',‘;‘%si"g'“ee’s Distribution: Project Mgr. ((riginal), Inspector (Copy)
Form 9753

Marshalltown, IA 50158









Drainage Work Order Request For Repair
Hardin County

Date: 8/25/2021

Work Order #: WO000000316

Drainage District: DDs\DD 52 (51078)

Sec-Twp-Rge: 28-87-21 Qtr Sec: SESE

Location/GIS: 87-21-28-400-008

Requested By:

Contact Phone:

Contact Email:

Landowner (ifdifferent): Faust, George & Carma Living Trust

Description: DD 52 - Secondary Roads reports suckhole on main tile on N side of 270th in ditch,
Culvert dumps into concrete structure with a 16" & 14" tile, both tiles have suckholes at
box joint and box is damaged and sucking in dirt at base. See photos.

Repair labor, materials and equipment:

Repaired By: Date:

Please reference work order # and send statement for services to: Hardin County Auditor's Office
Attn: Drainage Clerk
1215 Edgington Ave, Suite 1
Eldora, IA 50627
Phone (641) 939-8111
Fax (641) 939-8245

For Office Use Only

Approved: Date:










B
i
N
H
i






